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In spite of the challenging social and economic

circumstances, 2020/2021 has been another successful

year for the Elim Group, both financially and in terms of

progress made against our strategic objectives. Delivering a

strong, sustainable financial performance is key in

underpinning the Group’s plans, enabling us to invest in our

existing portfolio of homes and the support services we

provide for our customers, as well as being able to

selectively invest in the development of future homes so that

we can extend our reach and support a wider resident

group.

The national COVID-19 pandemic response has naturally

dominated the organisation’s focus this year, significantly

impacting the lives of our residents and staff alike – whilst

this unprecedented outbreak has placed a heavy burden on

the whole nation, on behalf of the Board I would like to

thank the entire Elim team for their ongoing commitment

and fantastic response to the challenges posed by

maintaining much-needed services during such a disruptive

personal and professional period. Everybody has been living

our values and “going the extra mile” daily to ensure that

customers remain supported and safe during this difficult

time. 

It is a testament to the efforts and commitment of our

Supported Housing staff that even during the pandemic we

have managed to grow our services, successfully winning

one new Rough Sleeper Initiative Project and securing

funding for 11 new Next Steps Accommodation Units which

will deliver in the first quarter of the new financial year; the

positive housing outcomes achieved over the last 12 months

have been gratifying and in total over 260 new residents

have been welcomed into our Supported Housing schemes

over the past year. Similarly, the Gypsy and Traveller service

team have worked closely with commissioning partners to

successfully mobilise new temporary arrangements in

response to pandemic demands; the gypsy and traveller

community remain one of the most vulnerable and 

CHAIR'S
STATEMENT

mis-represented groups in society, and the team have

worked hard this year to support new Local Authorities and

other organisations in our sector to consider improving older

sites and delivering new Gypsy and Traveller sites which are

fit for the future.

Whilst the COVID-19 outbreak has undoubtedly challenged

us and forced us to re-evaluate and adopt new short-term

priorities, delaying some of our plans, it is important that as

an organisation we reflect on the learnings and some of the

positive benefits which have emerged from this period, for

example the enhanced “feeling of team” we have

experienced across the organisation, the successful

adoption of flexible working arrangements and an improved

use of IT, and carry these forward appropriately for the

benefit of both staff and residents as we cautiously emerge

from the pandemic in the coming months.

It would have been easy to have allowed the operational

implications of the COVID-19 pandemic to dominate

proceedings to the detriment of all else this year, however I

am pleased to say that this has not been the case and the

team have made good progress in delivering against our

stated business objectives. 

Further detail is outlined elsewhere in the report, but we

have made good progress against our resident engagement

agenda, specifically launching our new Customer

Involvement and Empowerment Policy, joining TPAS, the

Tenant Engagement specialists, adopting the National

Housing Federation’s Together with Tenants Charter and

mobilising the establishment of our Tenant Scrutiny Panel.

We have also continued working to strengthen our internal

governance and decision-making arrangements and have

remained focussed on developing the Elim team culture and

embedding our CARES values across the organisation.

On the property front, COVID-19 unfortunately delayed the

Everybody has been living our
values and “going the extra mile”

daily to ensure that customers
remain supported and safe 

during this difficult time. 
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completion of our stock condition survey which is now

complete, the subsequent stock appraisals and the

development of our asset management and 30 year

investment strategy is the key strategic priority facing the

organisation in 2021/2022. 

In terms of our development plans, whilst the association has

unfortunately not completed any in year property

developments, 2020/2021 has still been very positive: the

organisation has successfully increased sector engagement,

creating future opportunities for Elim to capitalise on our

areas of specialism and our ability to successfully take on

challenging, often niche projects which deliver high social

value and we exit the year with a very strong future

development pipeline which will support our medium-term

growth aspirations. I am also pleased to report that Lime

Property Ventures (LPV), created to generate growth for

reinvestment in the work of the Group, has had another

successful year enabling an inter-group donation from LPV

to Elim Housing Association of £250,000.

In amongst the considerable social and economic

turbulence, the last year has also seen significant change in

terms of our executive leadership: Alistair Allender, who

successfully served as Elim Group CEO for 29 years, stood

down at last year’s AGM to be replaced by Paul Smith. 

It is a testament to the efforts
and commitment of our

Supported Housing staff that
even during the pandemic we

have managed to grow our
services

A well-known and respected figure in the housing 

sector, Paul has ably stepped into the significant void 

left by Alistair’s departure, quickly and effectively

establishing himself in the role and taking the lead in

proactively promoting Elim with stakeholders and existing

and potential commissioning and development partners:

Paul’s influence has been instrumental in creating the future

development pipeline referred to above. Under Paul’s strong

leadership, I am confident that we will be able to

successfully build upon the legacy left by Alistair and that

Elim will continue to thrive as we enter the next key phase of

our development.

There has been significant change in the Board over the past

year, with the retirement of Rachael Fisher and Alistair

Allender, and the appointment of Sally Mason and Stuart

Palmer (previously co-opted members), Ian McLeod and Paul

Smith. Additionally, Jamie Paddon retired as a co-optee

from the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee in February

2021. I would like to welcome Sally, Stuart, Ian and Paul and

sincerely thank Alistair, Rachael and Jamie for their valued

contribution to the organisation during their tenure.

Additionally, I would like to thank all my Board colleagues for

their ongoing support, counsel and commitment – in-keeping

with all Housing Associations, the Elim Group faces

challenging times ahead and we will only be successful with

strong Executive and Board leadership.

A N D R E W  L U N T
Chair

4

Below: Elim and NHS staff delivering vaccines to residents
Below: residents Ben and Korrina working on the
garden at Taylor House



We are one of the largest providers of this service in

the country. Our Deputy Chief Executive, Rachel

Pinchin, helped to produce a national good practice

guide on these services: “Places we’re proud of”.

We joined a number of national networks, Tenant

Participation Advisory Service, Placeshapers and

Homes For Cathy, because we know we are most

effective when we are working with and learning from

others. The most important partnership we are working

on is with our residential customers. We know we need

to improve our services and the quality of our homes,

guided by the people who live in them. We have

started to develop a number of formal and informal

approaches to bringing the voice and views of

residents into the governance of the organisation.

 

 

 

We have also identified a couple of strategic areas

where we need to learn more and become stronger.

They are Climate Change and Equality, Diversity and

Inclusion. We have set up working groups bringing

together staff and Board Members to explore the

issues and to develop our strategies in these areas.

Both will report in 2021/2022.

I have inherited from Alistair a fantastic role in an

exciting and special organisation. We have challenges

to face around improving our services and our homes

and are dealing with large issues around raising

capital finance, tackling climate change and

reflecting the communities we serve in the work we

do. However, what I have inherited is a committed,

enthusiastic and skilled team of colleagues which

makes me optimistic that Elim can meet those

challenges and also maintain our independence,

adding to the social housing sector, not being

absorbed by it.

We believe that Elim has a unique
diversity of services provided to a
wide range of customers, which

gives us a special position within the
housing association sector. 

When introducing annual reports, every year is somehow

more important or momentous than the last. For Elim, this

year has huge significance as Alistair Allender, Chief

Executive for 29 years, retired from his role. Alistair

established an organisation which grew by developing niche

services, which meant it didn’t waste energy competing toe-

to-toe with larger, better-funded organisations. This

strategy has created an organisation with a purpose, which

is why Elim continues to operate as an independent housing

association. 

No organisation has a right to exist and one of the tasks the

board identified in a SWOT analysis during the year was the

fundamental question as to whether Elim should consider

merging with another association. Following a process of

discussion and research the Executive Team and the Board

agreed a position paper on mergers, agreeing that it was

not something which we sought but that we must always be

open to ideas which can improve the service to our

customers. We believe that Elim has a unique diversity of

services provided to a wide range of customers, which gives

us a special position within the housing association sector.

We believe there is still a role for a small, values-driven

organisation which is prepared to explore the niches which

most mainstream associations would not consider.

Importantly, core to Elim’s continued success is recognising

that as a small housing association we lever our resources

by developing strong partnerships with other organisations

which are prepared to share our values and objectives. This

year we signed a partnership agreement with Bristol & Bath

Regional Capital CIC (BBRC). They have contacts in local

churches which they are using to bring forward sites with

Elim to meet local needs. This means through working

together we can build new homes which otherwise would

not be developed, adding value to what the rest of the

housing association sector is doing rather than competing

for the same resources.

Our largest niche is the provision of pitches for people from

Gypsy, Roma and Travelling communities, representing

around one sixth of the homes we provide. 

CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S
STATEMENT

P A U L  S M I T H

Chief Executive
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STRATEGIC REPORT

C
CUSTOMERS FIRST
Customers are at the heart of our services and decision
making.

A

R

E

S

ASPIRATIONAL & ACCOUNTABLE
We are ambit ious for our customers, staff and stakeholders. 
We work with integri ty, learn from mistakes and do what we say
we wil l .  

RESULTS 
We work hard and del iver great results for our customers and 
for El im.

EVERYONE’S VIEW MATTERS
We l isten to understand, improve and bui ld our services.

SUPPORTIVE
We tackle chal lenges head on and inspire each
other to achieve our potential.
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The Board of Elim Housing is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial statements of Elim

Housing Association Limited (the Association) and Elim Housing Group (the group) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

About us

We own and manage 899 homes in 11 local authority areas across the South West of England, Birmingham and South

Wales. Our geographical spread and mix of tenures make us different from other housing associations. We are experts

in the provision of Gypsy and Traveller schemes and our support services are well respected in the areas that we

operate.

Our vision is to meet housing need and
deliver homes that change people’s lives

Our values 

 

Elim Housing staff, customers, Board and stakeholders have developed Elim CARES values that determine how we

work together to deliver our services and achieve our business plan, objectives and vision.

Reflecting our year-long focus on our Customers First value, each member of Elim staff participated in a bespoke five

week Customer Service training course, focussing on the delivery of our Customer Service and Involvement Strategy

and our Elim CARES values.



OUR PERFORMANCE

2020/2021
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THE YEAR IN NUMBERS

65 colleagues 897
homes
owned and
managed

485
new 
customers

346
customers 
who moved on 5,228 repairs 

completed

18.6% operating 
margin 78% customer 

satisfaction

19 complaints 16
complaints
resolved at
stage 1

84%



Delivering our strategic plan

Despite a number of constraints imposed by the pandemic,

there has been good progress across a number of strategic

areas over the year, and this is reflected in the growth of both

our homelessness-related support services and our

development pipeline over the last two quarters of the year.

Significant work has been undertaken to embed the Elim

CARES values, in addition to the enhancement of our

governance framework at Board and operational level.

A number of strategic asset milestones including the

completion of the portfolio-wide stock condition survey were

delayed within the year, but this is now complete and feeds

into one of the most significant areas of strategic focus for

the year ahead which will include the development of a new

30 year asset management plan, stock appraisals and a

revised environmental action plan, which will address Elim’s

commitment to the reduction of our carbon footprint.

Alongside our asset management plans, our other major focus

is on the strengthening and amplifying of our customers’

voices so that they can better influence our decision making

and strategic direction. With a view to the impact of the

Social Housing White Paper, triangulated with the new NHF

Code of Governance and Together with Tenants, we have

started the work to ensure that we have the right culture,

structure and resources to provide services and deliver a

business plan that genuinely puts our Customers First. We

know this requires a strong governance framework, and

adherence to the right policies and procedures which will

enable changing regulatory and contractual compliance to

be achieved, and we welcome the prospective strengthening

of the consumer regulatory regime.

OUR PRIORITIES
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RESPONDING TO KEY
EVENTS
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The COVID-19 pandemic

Providing a context for the whole financial year, the Coronavirus pandemic

has affected every aspect of our business, with a quantifiable impact on our

year end operational performance. However, we are pleased with the

strategic progress that we have sustained whilst ensuring the safety and

wellbeing of our customers and colleagues in the delivery of our operations.

This has been a particular challenge for staff and residents in our

homelessness related schemes, which are heavily reliant on the safe and

appropriate use of communal living facilities.

From the beginning of the pandemic, we have ensured that residents have

had access to masks, sanitiser, cleaning equipment and guidance to

minimise the risk of transmission of COVID-19. Organisationally, we have

maintained active risk management plans in place and continuously refined

our approach to internal and external communications with customers, staff

and external stakeholders in order to work effectively, and at pace to reduce

the risk of transmission at any of Elim’s properties. We have been extremely

well supported in these efforts by our maintenance contractors who have

worked closely with our staff and residents to ensure that our homes have

remained safe, compliant and well-maintained throughout the year.

In many ways the pandemic prompted a different approach to customer

communication, and over the year our staff completed multiple rounds of

welfare calls to every Elim household, to check on our residents’ general

wellbeing, with a specific focus on two key issues during the pandemic:

isolation and financial resilience. The learning from many of these

conversations will carry through to our operational plans for the year ahead.

2020/2021 also saw Elim working in partnership with South Gloucestershire

and Bristol City Councils to agree delivery of 11 additional homes for people

whose housing situation has been affected by the pandemic under the Next

Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP). 

This partnership working has been a hallmark of the pandemic response

across our sector and we would like to take this opportunity to extend our

thanks to the other housing and support providers, local authorities, public

health teams and NHS staff who have worked with us to help keep people

safe and meet housing need over the past 12 months.
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We were also able to support two new Local

Authorities to set up and manage temporary Gypsy

and Traveller sites which were identified as part of a

direct response to COVID-19, in order to meet

Government advice in relation to additional support

for vulnerable Gypsy and Traveller families and to

demonstrate increased sensitivity and a solution-

focussed approach in the management of

unauthorised encampments.

Building safety

Over the last 12 months, the maintenance team has

significantly improved our resident’s safety in their

homes by ensuring all statutory compliance testing,

surveying and inspections were carried out. In this

period, we have caught up on a large backlog of

overdue testing, surveying and servicing in several

areas. At the beginning of the financial year all

statutory compliance testing procedures were re-

written and issued to our contractors carrying out

these works.

We have introduced a section on our website to make

residents aware of what we need to carry our

regarding building compliance and why and the

frequency and the approximate duration of these tests

and checks. Visit the website page here.

Regulation

The regulatory environment has remained stable during

the year. The Social Housing White Paper was

published which introduced changes to the regulation

of compliance with the Consumer Standards.

As a result of the Grenfell fire in 2017, a new Building

Safety Bill and the Fire Safety Bill were passed by the

Government to safeguard against the event being

repeated. All of our applicable buildings have an up-

to-date fire risk assessment with a risk-based

approach being used to prioritise any resulting

recommendations.

Work has commenced on identifying any buildings that

could potentially have the ACM cladding and this work

is ongoing for 2021/2022.

Sustainability and net-zero carbon

We introduced the use of A-rated energy performance

for windows and external door replacements as a

standard in this period. We are replacing communal

lighting with high efficiency LED lighting with a 5-year

warranty. These LED lights and their controls will

typically reduce electrical consumption by 65-70% and

consequently reduce our carbon footprint.

The economy and the UK’s exit from the EU

It was anticipated that Brexit would be the main

impact on the UK’s economy due to the exposure to

interest rate fluctuations. We carried out stress testing

against the risks of Brexit but it has subsequently

become necessary to build on those scenarios to

incorporate the impact of the pandemic.

We anticipated that there would be an increase in rent

arrears due to the sudden changes in many customers’

financial circumstances due to furlough and

unemployment and have also considered the impact of

a housing market downturn following the end of the

stamp duty holiday.

Brexit has affected the construction industry, in

particular the supply of materials and workers and this

is expected to be significant. It is likely that the cost of

construction projects will rise where labour demand is

higher than the supply. These impacts are included in

our scenario testing.

At the end of the year, the largest impact on us has

been the pandemic and the anticipated increase in

rent arrears and the downturn in the housing market is

yet to materialise. The ongoing impact will be

monitored throughout 2021/2022 as government

initiatives come to an end.

https://www.elimhousing.co.uk/resident-zone/statutory-compliance/


OPERATIONAL

REVIEW

11

Key performance indicators

Current rent arrears

Overall customer satisfaction

Net promoter score

Positive housing outcomes

Customer satisfaction with repairs

Void rent loss

Staff satisfaction

 

4.5%

80%

N/A

75%

70%

2.7%

80%

 

5.2%

76%

43

88%

86%

2.9%

80%

5.2%

78%

45

88%

83%

2.9%

79%

2020/21

Target

2020/21

Actual

2019/20

Actual

Housing management and support services

At the beginning of the pandemic we committed to maintaining our service provision as far as possible, whilst

ensuring that we followed government advice regarding social distancing at all times.

In a year when the shortage of affordable housing was brought into sharp focus, our homelessness services

continued operating throughout the pandemic, helping those in housing need to find permanent

accommodation. Our Time to Heal hospital discharge service also played their part in supporting the NHS

during the pandemic, ensuring that hospital patients without secure accommodation could be safely

discharged from the wards. In total, 85% of people leaving our support services moved on in a positive and

planned way. That is 346 lives changed.

Where possible we have also looked to support residents in our affordable housing as well, carrying out

welfare checks and providing advice and guidance to those who experienced the financial impact of the

pandemic.

April 2020 saw the launch of our Customer Involvement and Empowerment Strategy, which we will continue

to deliver until 2023. The strategy underlined our commitment to our customers, in particular allowing their

views to shape our services and more broadly.
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 Compliance: ensuring that all our statutory testing, surveys and inspections were completed and

that we had all the systems in place to ensure that we continue to keep up to date with ensuring

that our residents are safe in their homes

 Stock condition survey: increasing our knowledge of our housing stock so that we can properly

cost and plan our planned and cyclical maintenance.

Over 2020/2021 we have redesigned the way in which we gather and respond to our customers’

views and we have become members of TPAS, the Tenant Engagement Experts. Our regulatory and

Customer Feedback policies have been reviewed with a renewed focus on resident impact. We have

adopted the National Housing Federation’s Together with Tenants Charter and will become

recognised members of the scheme in 2021. We have also begun the process of forming our Tenant

Scrutiny Panel.

In 2020 we involved our tenants in the appointment of new cleaning and grounds maintenance

contractors and their input has a direct impact on our approach to improving the condition of our

homes. The groundwork laid over the past year will ensure that they have an ever greater part to play

in this kind of decision-making moving forwards.

Asset management

There have been two priorities over the last year:

1.

2.

Compliance

12

140
safety certificates
and servicing to
gas boilers

143
asbestos
management
reviews

176
properties moved from 10
year to 5 year electrical
testing regime, which now
applies to all of our homes

59 fire risk
assessments 9

properties now
have weekly
fire alarm tests 4/4 lifts

inspected

83 unvented
cylinders tested

We have in place a comprehensive system for managing all risks in our properties and have
established and appointed to a new role to oversee all of our safety compliance issues.



Stock condition survey

Between September and February, we carried out

our stock condition survey (SCS) and managed to

survey or clone 93% of our properties. The initial

assessment estimated a cost of £23.6m over the

next 30 years. This data is being analysed, checked

and updated using the data on our systems to

enable the assessment of our stock and will allow a

30-year investment plan to be developed in 2021

with a planned works programme to commence in

2022.

Development and growth

Development throughout the year has been

minimal. We have one project on site at Novers Hill

and completion has been delayed to quarter 1

2021/2022 due to the pandemic and the

availability of materials. We have secured funding

from the Next Steps Accommodation Programme

for the provision of 11 homes for homelessness and

these will be available from June 2021. A strategic

partnership was entered into the year with Bristol

and Bath Regional Capital (BBRC) to bring forward

church sites for Elim to develop. LPV has developed

a scheme of 4 homes at Coulstreng with a micro

builder CHI Homes of which 2 properties were

completed in the financial year. We also have had

an offer accepted on land at Frampton Cottrell and

this is due to complete once all the due diligence

has been completed. This will provide 2 homes.

Corporate services

The Organisational Development Strategy vision is

to transform the Elim Housing Group into an

organisation with a culture that supports staff

development and our ability to deliver the business

plan and the vision. The Organisational

Development Committee monitors the progress of

this strategy and reports to the Board. 
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The last year has seen significant progress continue

with the delivery of management development and

skills training to all our leaders, the design of a new

organisation-wide learning and development

programme and the roll-out of open to all support

and funding initiative for career and personal

development.

Elim Housing has 65 staff working across Bristol,

Gloucester, Devon and Somerset. Our staff work in

schemes and projects, at our Gypsy and Traveller

sites and from our head office. This last year has

seen many staff working from home and the

introduction of more flexible working arrangements

for staff, subject to delivering excellent services to

our customers and stakeholders. Elim has supported

staff well during the COVID pandemic and this has

been reflected by 80% staff satisfaction scores in

the two staff surveys run in this financial year. Staff

engagement has been exceptional, with staff

proactively contacting residents and customers and

adapting effectively to the challenges head on and

have been demonstrating the Elim CARES values.

There has been an unprecedented level of

investment, both in terms of time and resource, in

our digital infrastructure over the last twelve

months. Changes in our telecoms and network

system has stood us in much better stead in terms

of our ability to handle the remote working

demands of the pandemic’s impact on our business,

and the acceleration of our hardware programme

has enabled business continuity and more efficient

working from all staff. Several capital projects also

commenced in year to deliver improved broadband

services to some of our most vulnerable residents,

and the first version of our new Customer Self

Service portal was released to us at the beginning

of 2021 for roll-out later this year.



Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

Elim recognises the importance of a diverse and inclusive culture and is

proactively working to promote Elim as an Employer of Choice for

everyone. During the last year, we have genuinely wanted to challenge

ourselves to make sure we are attracting a diverse pool of candidates for

our roles and reflecting our customer diversity in our staff.

A joint staff and Board task group has been set up and meetings

commenced to champion diversity and inclusion, identify areas for

improvement and make recommendations to overcome potential blocks

or barriers in our practices throughout the 2021/2022 financial year.

LPV

The year ending March 2021 reflects Lime Property Ventures (LPV) fourth

whole year of trading. Lime Property Ventures is the wholly owned

commercial subsidiary of the Elim Group. Its purpose is to generate profit

for reinvestment in the work of the Group, and it has the capacity to

maximise the value of trading opportunities on behalf of the Group, and

the flexibility to explore new ideas and operate as an investment partner,

developer or private landlord. In March 2021, the LPV Board approved an

intra-group donation from Lime Property Ventures to Elim Housing

Association of £250,000.

LPV has now developed and manages 22 units of student

accommodation in the centre of Bristol, and this has generated a rental

income of £217,000 in year. During the twelve months, the company

purchased and sold one residential property and a separate plot of land

for future development, in Gloucestershire, and progressed its first joint

venture with micro-builder, CHI Homes, on a development of family

homes for market sale through to completion in May 2021.

Lime Property Ventures profit for the year before tax is £167,000, in total,

surplus generated by property trading across Lime Property Ventures and

Elim Housing in 2020/2021 was £363,000 and proceeds from sales made

up 12.3% of our total turnover.

14



FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Summary: statement of comprehensive income

Turnover

Social housing

Non-social housing

First tranche shared ownership

Surplus on disposal of housing properties

 

 

6,015

1,091

3

58

7,167

 

 

2021

£'000

15

2020

£'000

2019

£'000

2018

£'000

2017

£'000

5,791

688

519

275

7,273

5,681

659

177

128

6,645

 

5,675

2,164

523

327

8,689

 

5,515

845

1,156

(59)

7,457

 

Operating costs

Social housing

Non-social housing

First tranche shared ownership

(5,247)

(617)

-

(5,864)

 

(4,898)

(461)

(322)

(5,681)

 

(4,583)

(336)

(151)

(5,070)

 

(4,810)

(1,576)

(295)

(6,681)

 

(4,570)

(495)

(920)

(5,985)

Operating profit

 

Net interest charges

 

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

 

1,303

 

(693)

 

610

The Group had a strong year achieving turnover of £7,167,000 and a profit before tax of

£610,000.

Our core business remains social housing income accounting for 83.9% of total turnover. Our

social housing delivered an operating surplus of £768,000 and the operating margin for social

housing is 12.7%. This is lower than peers due to the level of supported housing that we provide

that has higher costs attributed to this business stream. However, this is funded by support

grant of £758,000 in the year.

There have been no first tranche shared ownership sales in the year, the six originally forecast

to complete in 2020/2021 has moved into the first quarter of 2021/2022 due to site delays

with the pandemic and the availability of materials.

1,592

 

(700)

 

892

 

1,575

 

(779)

 

796

 

2,008

 

(667)

 

1,341

 

1,472

 

(596)

 

876
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Summary: statement of financial position

Fixed assets 45,440

2021

£'000

16

2020

£'000

2019

£'000

2018

£'000

2017

£'000

Current assets

Inventory

Debtors

Cash and cash equivalents

 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

 

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Pension liability

Net assets

 

Reserves

 

1,113

1,036

2,230

 

(1,756)

2,623

 

(39,244)

(653)

8,166

 

8,166

 

Net interest charges for the year have decreased to £693,000 reflecting the low interest rate

on the element of variable rate debt. Whilst new loan facilities of £2m have been secured

during the year, no loan drawdowns have taken place due to the slow down of development

during the pandemic and lockdowns.

The Interest cover covenant, based on EBITDA-MRI as a percentage of interest payable, for the

year is 222%.

45,873 43,730 42,553 41,211

1,174

1,039

1,547

 

(1,809)

1,951

 

(39,519)

(356)

7,949

 

7,949

 

1,051

726

905

 

(1,492)

1,190

 

(37,409)

(1,009)

6,502

 

6,502

 

756

1,064

1,459

 

(1,838)

1,441

 

(37,258)

(393)

6,343

 

6,343

 

1,359

1,166

1,441

 

(1,467)

2,499

 

(38,693)

-

5,017

 

5,017

 

As at the end of March 2021, the Group is reporting reserves of £8,166,000. This reflects a

measured approach to investment decisions and a focus on ensuring that the Group maintains

a strong liquidity position to finance our planned maintenance.

The carrying amount of our properties at net historic cost is £45,399,000. The gross cost has

increased in the year due to investment in our existing stock.



The Group held £2,230,000 of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year. The

level of cash balance is deliberately high as we took to the decision to maintain high levels of

liquidity throughout the duration of the pandemic.

Value for Money (VfM)

At Elim we are committed to delivering and demonstrating Value for Money (VfM) in everything

that we do for our customers. This commitment is led by the Board but is shared across the

whole organisation and is embedded in our five-year strategy. Our approach is delivered by our

people through strong leadership, training, and rigorous financial management.

The use of benchmarking information is an important way for us to challenge and understand

our performance and costs. However, there are limitations within the benchmarking information

as we have a diverse portfolio of properties spread across a wide area within 11 local

authorities. Our figures also include our support services which has a more intensive

management service and this contributes towards higher headline management costs and a

lower operating margin. 

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the year

 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

year
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Summary: statement of cash flows

2021

£'000

17

2020

£'000

2019

£'000

2018

£'000

2017

£'000

944

(242)

(19)

 

1,547

 

 

2,230

 

851

(1,940)

1,731

 

905

 

 

1,547

 

1,015

(1,724)

155

 

1,459

 

 

905

 

2,955

(1,828)

(1,109)

 

1,441

 

 

1,459

 

1,915

(4,345)

851

 

3,020

 

 

1,441
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Value for money metric

Elim

2020/21

18

Elim

2019/20

SPBM

Lower

quartile

SPBM

Median

quartile

SPBM

Upper

quartile

1. Reinvestment (%)

2.New supply delivered (%)

Social Housing Units

Non-Social Housing Units

3.Gearing (%) 

4.EBITDA MRI

Interest cover (%)

5.Headline social housing cost per unit (£)

6.Operating margin (%)

Social Housing Lettings only

Overall

7.Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) (%)

8.Management cost per unit

9.Maintenance cost per unit

10.Customer satisfaction (%)

11.Satisfaction with repairs (%)

12.Positive move-ons (%)

13.Your Best Move (no. of households)

 

 

2.9

 

0.0

0.0

33.9

 

222

5,376

 

17.6

17.7

2.5

2,921

1,424

77.0

85.6

85.0

10

7.6

 

1.4

0.0

33.8

 

255

5,143

 

17.6

17.7

3.0

2,745

981

81.0

83.0

88.0

15

 

1.3

 

0.0

0.0

3.7

 

154

5,678

 

12.9

11.4

1.9

1,145

614

83.0

77.0

n/a

n/a

 

4.1

 

0.0

0.0

20.9

 

307

4,190

 

25.6

21.3

3.4

812

464

92.0

86.0

n/a

n/a

 

7.8

 

3.4

0.0

29.2

 

674

3,024

 

33.6

31.7

4.9

740

446

95.0

91.0

n/a

n/a

 

Risk management

The Group is committed to effective risk management. We ensure that the operating
environment is monitored so that risks and their drivers are continuously assessed and that we
respond accordingly. Risk oversight is the responsibility of the Board with the Finance, Risk and
Audit Committee undertaking a more detailed review of risks.

The Group has undertaken scenario testing to analyse the effects of economic and risk
scenarios. We have used Brixx to model these identified scenarios and assessed the impact on
the financial covenants and viability. Mitigation strategies are in place in order that the Group
can recover from the impact.

The Group’s risk management framework sets out the approach to risk management including
the risk appetite set by the Board. Risk appetite sets out the amount and type of risk that the
Group is willing to take in achieving our strategic objectives. The appetite also sets out any
risks that should not be taken in any circumstances.

All our risks are assessed in terms of their impact and likelihood. Risks are reviewed monthly and
reported to the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee quarterly.



Key financial metrics are monitored monthly and the level of available capital is
reported to the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee and the Board at each
meeting.
The funding modelling is included in the business planning activity and is stress
tested with different levels of expenditure and debt levels.
Monitoring the levels of security against each facility in order to maximise the
assets available for further funding.        

Risk: Funding challenges

An inability to access adequate finance and maintain sufficient security levels would
have an adverse effect on our ability to fund future development and growth
opportunities and the forthcoming decarbonisation of our existing properties.

1119

The current top risks facing the Group are:

Ensure that there is sufficient provision for our properties to meet EPC C by 2030.
Additional investment to be included in future refinancing requirements.
The investment required to achieve zero carbon by 2050 is difficult to estimate
and as requirements become clearer this will be included in financial planning.

Risk: Levels of investment required for meeting the Building Safety Bill
and Fire Safety Bill exceeds the levels within the financial plan

Changes to building safety legislation have increased the level of investment required
in our homes and additional costs associated to be included in the financial plan.

A full stock condition survey has been completed in the financial year which will
be used to inform a 30-year investment plan.
Stock evaluations on properties to assess the affordability of retaining this stock.

Risk: Lack of clarity on existing stock condition

An inability to produce an adequate planned maintenance investment plan leading to
insufficient liquidity to fund the programme.

We have in place network security, malware protection and email scanning which
is monitored and updated when necessary.
Data protection and security policies are in place.
Processes are in place to recognise phishing attempts.

Risk: Cybersecurity

An IT security breach leading to a loss of data and/or system compromise or failure.



All office-based staff have been working from home for the duration of the first
lockdown.
Continuation of service within our support schemes aided by the provision of
appropriate PPE.
Separate risk assessments conducted for each scheme to safeguard our staff
working in the schemes.
Emergency only repairs were completed during the first lockdown.
Welfare calls to all customers were completed to ensure that they were safe and
to signpost any organisations to assist with any issues.

Risk: Pandemic results in a loss of service

The impact of the pandemic has had a severe impact on society and businesses to be
able to operate safely.
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New comprehensive compliance workbook to ensure that all health and safety
compliance checks are completed when required.
A Health and Safety Compliance Group has been set up to review all compliance
matters.
Reports are prepared for the Development and Assets Committee at each
meeting.
Robust policies and procedures for all areas of compliance.

Risk: Health and safety compliance failure

Non-compliance with health and safety regulations leads to serious injury or death of
a customer or employee.

Governance

The Group Board, which is responsible for managing the affairs of the Group, comprises up to 11

non-executive directors and the Chief Executive who has been co-opted. The Board meets

formally at least four times a year for regular business and members also attend the Board

away days and the AGM. 

2020/2021 was an extraordinary year terms of the economic and social effects of the

pandemic. The Board responded proactively to ensure that the Group’s governance

arrangements and strategic plans could be adapted to the changing working environment as a

result of lockdowns.

The role of the Board continues to evolve, and four significant governance initiatives were

completed during the year.

The National Housing Federation published a new Code of Governance and the Board adopted

the recommendations within the code.
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Monitoring and scrutiny of financial performance, KPIs, and relevant

policies,

Approving the risk management strategy including the risk activity,

the health and safety management plan and internal controls,

Internal and external audit work.

During the year, all the Board members were subject to a new appraisal

system which was designed in 2019/2020. This has led to an

understanding of the skills and knowledge that are available and the

opportunity to upskill some Board members in areas outside their

knowledge.

Two new strategies were approved: the Asset Management Strategy and

the Development and Growth Strategy. These strategies have led to the

adoption of an Elim Standard for our properties.

The Board formally set out the position on mergers and acquisitions which

has provided guidance on the parameters to be considered in each case.

The Board and committees

Andy Lunt completed his first full year as Group chair after being elected

in September 2019.

The Board continued its recruitment programme during the year, leading

to the appointment of one new board members Ian McLeod. Stuart

Palmer and Sally Mason were elected to the Board in September 2020

after being co-opted the previous year. The Group Chief Executive is

also a co-opted member of the Board.

The present board members and those who served during the year are

set out on page two. The Board is drawn from a wide background

bringing together professional, commercial and other relevant

experience. Our sincere thanks to Rachael Fisher who stepped down

from the Board after nine years’ service and Jamie Paddon who resigned

from the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee.

Our plans for 2021/22 include the recruitment of one new board

member and two new co-opted members of the Finance, Risk and Audit

Committee.

The Finance, Risk and Audit committee comprises five members, three of

whom are Group board members. The committee meets four times per

year and covers three main areas of work:
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Data quality and insurance are also covered by this

committee.

The Organisational Development Committee has a

proactive role in directing and scrutinising the

organisation’s culture and people. The committee is

responsible for overseeing the organisational

development strategy, the customer strategy, and

the digital strategy. It also influences how Elim’s

people, both staff and the Board, contribute to the

organisation. The committee meets four times a

year with a membership of five including three

Group directors.

The Development and Assets Committee has a

membership of five, including three Group

Directors. The work of the committee is a valuable

part of the new governance arrangements, and its

main purpose is to oversee the development and

asset management strategy and operational plans,

and to ensure regulatory compliance in these areas.

The strategic leadership team comprising the Chief

Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and Finance

Director attend all the committee meetings.

The Board receives regular reports from each of the

committees summarising activity and any new

emergent risks.

The group has insurance policies which indemnify its

board members and executive officers against

liability when acting for the group.

Internal controls

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for

establishing and maintaining the whole system of

internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The system of internal control is designed to

minimise, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to

achieve business objectives, and to provide

reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against

material misstatement or loss. 

Board approved terms of reference and

delegated authorities for finance, risk and audit

committee, organisational development

committee and development and assets

committee

Clearly defined management responsibilities for

the identification, evaluation and control of

significant risks

Robust strategic and business planning

processes

Annual review of the association’s risk register

by the finance, risk and audit committee and

the Board

Detailed financial budgets and forecasts for the

current year

Formal recruitment, retention, training and

development policies for staff and the Board

Established authorisation and appraisal

procedures for all significant new initiatives and

commitments

A considered approach to treasury

management and financing that is subject to

review on an annual basis

Regular reporting to senior management and

the appropriate committee of key business

objectives, targets and outcomes

Board approved whistle-blowing policy; and

Detailed policies and procedures in each area

of the association’s work

The process for identifying, evaluating and

managing the significant risks faced by the

association is ongoing, and has been in place

throughout the period commencing 1 April 2020 up

to the date of approval of the annual report and

financial statements. The finance, risk and audit

committee receives and considers reports from

management on these risk management and control

arrangements at each meeting during the year.

Key elements of the control framework include:



Select suitable accounting policies and then

apply them consistently,

Make judgements and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent,

State whether UK Accounting Standards and

the Statement of Recommended Practice

(SORP) for Registered Housing Providers 2018

have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the

financial statements, and

Prepare the financial statements on a going

concern basis unless it is inappropriate to

presume that the registered social housing

provider will continue in business.

Under the Co-operative and Community Benefit

Society legislation, the directors must not approve

the financial statements unless they are satisfied

that they give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs and surplus or deficit of the Association and

Group for that period.In preparing these financial

statements the Board is required to:

The Board is responsible for keeping proper

accounting records which disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the

association and the group and enable it to ensure

that the financial statements comply with the Co-

operative and Community Benefit Society Act 2014.

It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the association and the group and for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditors

A resolution to appoint Mazars LLP will be proposed

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved by the board on

30th June 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Lisa Martin

Company Secretary
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So far as each Board Member is aware, there is

no relevant audit information of which the

company’s auditor is unaware, and

The Board have taken all the steps that they

ought to have taken as directors in order to

make themselves aware of any relevant audit

information and to establish that the auditors

are aware of that information.

The Board cannot delegate ultimate responsibility

for the system of internal control, but it can, and

has, delegated authority to the finance, risk and

audit committee to review the system of internal

control. The Board receives quarterly reports from

the three committees.

The means by which the finance, risk and audit

committee reviews the effectiveness of the system

of internal control includes considering risk reports,

internal audit reports, management assurances, the

external audit management letter and specialist

reviews.

Compliance with the Regulator of Social

Housing governance and financial viability

standard

The Board confirms that the group complies with

the requirements of the revised governance and

financial viability standard applicable for the year.

Provision of information to auditor

The Board confirms that:

Statement of Board’s responsibilities

The Board is responsible for preparing the report

and financial statements in accordance with

applicable law and regulations.

Co-operative and Community Benefit Society

legislation requires the Board to prepare financial

statements for each financial year. Under that law

the directors have elected to prepare the financial

statements in accordance with United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United

Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable

laws).



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF ELIM HOUSING

ASSOCIATION GROUP
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Give a true and fair view of the state of the group and parent

association’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its surplus for the

year then ended;

Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-

operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-

operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts)

Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the

Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social

Housing 2015.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Elim Housing Association

Limited (the ‘parent association’) and its subsidiary (‘the group’) for the

year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the group and parent

association’s Statements of Comprehensive Income, the group and

parent association’s Statements of Financial Position, the group and the

parent association’s Statements of Changes in Reserves, the group

Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law

and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of

Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on

Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are

independent of the company in accordance with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in

the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board’s

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the

financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any

material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or

collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group or the parent

association’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at

least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised

for issued.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Board members with

respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this

report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual

report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon. The Board is responsible for the other information contained

within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does

not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility

is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material

misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of

the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

25
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The information given in the Strategic Report

and the Directors’ Report for the financial year

for which the financial statements are prepared

is consistent with the financial statements; and

The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report

have been prepared in accordance with

applicable legal requirements.

Adequate accounting records have not been

kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not

been received from branches not visited by us;

or

The financial statements are not in agreement

with the accounting records and returns; or

Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration

specified by law are not made; and

We have not received all the information and

explanations we require for our audit.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the

course of the audit:

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the

group and the parent association and its

environment obtained in the course of the audit, we

have not identified material misstatements in the

Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the

following matters in relation to which the

Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

in our opinion:

Responsibilities of the Board

As explained more fully in the Board’s

Responsibilities Statement set out on page 23, the

Board are responsible for the preparation of the

financial statements and for being satisfied that

they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

control as the Board determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board is

responsible for assessing the group and the parent

association’s ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless the Board either intend to

liquidate the group or the parent association or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is

a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs

(UK) will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-

compliance with laws and regulations. We design

procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined

above, to detect material misstatements in respect

of irregularities, including fraud. Based on our

understanding of the association and its industry,

we identified that the principal risks of non-

compliance with laws and regulations related to the

UK tax legislation, pensions legislation, employment

regulation and health and safety regulation, anti-

bribery, corruption and fraud, money laundering,

non-compliance with implementation of

government support schemes relating to COVID-19,

and we considered the extent to which non-

compliance might have a material effect on the

financial statements. We also considered those laws

and regulations that have a direct impact on the

preparation of the financial statements, such as the

Companies Act 2006.

We evaluated the directors’ and management’s

incentives and opportunities for fraudulent

manipulation of the financial statements 
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Discussing with the Board and management their policies and procedures regarding compliance with

laws and regulations;

Communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining alert

to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and

Considering the risk of acts by the company which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations,

including fraud.

Making enquiries of the directors and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual,

suspected or alleged fraud;

Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud;

Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and

Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal entry

testing.

(including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to posting

manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias through judgements and

assumptions in significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to loss reserves, and significant

one-off or unusual transactions.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance with

laws and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our audit

procedures included but were not limited to:

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to:

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for the

prevention of detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management. As with any audit, there

remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part

of our auditor’s report.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of

the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To

the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the

company and the company’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed. 

Richard Bott (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP

90 Victoria Street,

Bristol,

BS1 6DP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
 

 Note  2021 
£’000 

 2020 
£’000 

 
Turnover 3 7,109 6,998 
    
Operating costs 3 (5,864) (5,681) 
    
Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 58 275 
   _______  _______ 
    
Operating surplus 7 1,303 1,592 
    
Interest receivable 9 1 2 
Interest and financing costs 10 (694) (702) 
   _______  _______ 
    
Surplus for the year before taxation  610 892 
    

Taxation 11 (34) (27) 
  _______ _______ 
 
Surplus for the year after taxation 

  
576 

 
865 

    
Actuarial losses in respect of pension schemes 5 (393) 582 
   _______  _______ 
    

Total comprehensive income for the year  183 1,447 
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
 

 Note 2021 2020 
  £’000 £’000 
    
Turnover 3 6,282 6,343 
    
Operating costs 3 (5,247) (5,220) 
    
Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 58 275 
  _______ _______ 
    
Operating surplus 7 1,093 1,398 
    
Interest receivable 9 13 12 
Interest and financing costs 10 (663) (665) 
  _______ _______ 
    
Surplus for the year 
 

 443 
 

745 

Actuarial losses in respect of pension schemes 5 (393) 582 
  _______ _______ 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year  50 1,327 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
At 31 March 2021 

Note 2021 2020 
£’000 £’000 

Fixed assets 
Housing properties at cost 12 53,116 52,917 
Less: Depreciation 12 (7,717) (7,109) 

_______ _______ 

12 45,399 45,808 
Other property, plant and equipment 13 41 65 

_______ _______ 

45,440 45,873 
_______ _______ 

Current assets 
Inventories 15 1,113 1,174 
Debtors 16 1,036 1,039 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,230 1,547 

_______ _______ 

4,379 3,760 

Creditors amounts falling due within one year 17 (1,790) (1,809) 
_______ _______ 

Net current assets 2,589 1,951 
_______ _______ 

Total assets less current liabilities 48,029 47,824 
_______ _______ 

Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year 18 (39,244) (39,519) 
Provision for liabilities and charges 19 - - 
Pension – defined benefit liability 5 (653) (356)

_______ _______

Net assets 8,132 7,949 

Capital and Reserves 
Non equity share capital 24 - - 
Revenue reserves 8,132 7,949 

_______ _______ 

8,132 7,949 

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by: 

A Lunt P Smith 
Chair Chief Executive  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
At 31 March 2021 

Note 2021 2020 
£’000 £’000 

Fixed assets 
Housing properties at cost 12 52,097 51,899 
Less: Depreciation 12 (7,443) (6,855) 

_______ _______ 

12 45,654 45,044 
Other property, plant and equipment 13 41 65 

_______ _______ 

44,695 45,109 

Current assets 
Inventories 15 613 650 
Debtors 16 1,860 1,420 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,488 1,394 

_______ _______ 

4,069 3,464 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 (1,651) (1,656) 
_______ _______ 

Net current assets 2,310 1,808 
_______ _______ 

Total assets less current liabilities 47,005 46,917 

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 18 (38,294) (38,552) 
Pension – defined benefit liability 5 (653) (356)

_______ _______

Net assets 8,058 8,008 

Capital and reserves 
Non-equity share capital 24 - - 
Revenue reserves 8,058 8,008 

_______ _______ 

8,058 8,008 

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by: 

A Lunt P Smith 
Chair Chief Executive 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES TO RESERVES 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

 

 Group Association 
     
 2021 2020 2021 2020 
Revenue reserves £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
At beginning of the year 7,949 6,502 8,008 6,681 
     
Total comprehensive income for the year 183 1,447 50 1,327 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ 
     
At end of the year 8,132 7,949 8,058 8,008 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 Note  2021  2020 

   £’000  £’000 
    

Net cash generated from operating activities A  944           851 
   _______  _______ 

Cash flows from investing activities    

 Acquisition and construction of properties            (457)           (3,228) 

 Purchase of other plant and equipment                (45)             (53) 

     Disposal of housing properties                259               771 

 Social housing grant (paid) / received                -             628 

 Interest received                    1  2 
   _________  _________ 

    

Net cash flows from investing activities            (242)           (1,940) 
   _________  _________ 

Cash flows from financing activities    

     New loans               -  1,750 

 Repayment of borrowings                (19)  (19) 
   _________  _________ 

    

Net cash flows from financing activities                 (19)          1,731 
   _________  _________ 

    

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                 683                        642 
    

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year              1,547            905 
   _________  _________ 

    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                 2,230 1,547 
                                            

    

Note A Cash flows from operating activities   2021  2020 

   £’000  £’000 
    

Surplus for the year   217            1,477 
    

Adjustment for non-cash items:    

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  727 612 

Corporation tax due 
Decrease/ (increase) in debtors 

 - 
(3) 

- 
(313) 

Increase / (decrease) in creditors  (50) 289 

Decrease/ (increase) in inventories  297 (505) 

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions  61 (653) 

Adjustments for investing or financing activities:    
    

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant & equipment  (736) (496) 

Social housing grants utilised in the year  (262) (260) 

Interest payable  694 702 

Interest received  (1) (2) 
   _________  _________ 

    

Net cash generated from operating activities  944 851 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

1. Legal status 
 

Elim Housing Association is registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 
and is a registered provider of social housing. The group comprises Elim Housing Association as the parent 
and Lime Property Ventures, an unregistered commercial subsidiary.  

 

2. Accounting Policies 
 

The principal accounting policies of the group are summarised below. They have all been applied 
consistently throughout the year and to the preceding year. 
 

General information and basis of accounting 
  
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include 
certain items at fair value, in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council and comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice for registered 
social housing providers 2014 (SORP), the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting 
Direction for private registered providers of social housing 2015. Elim Housing Association is a Public 
benefit entity, as defined in FRS102 and appliers the relevant paragraph prefixed ‘PBE’ in FRS 102. 

 

Basis of consolidation 
 
The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the association and its subsidiary 
undertakings drawn up to 31 March each year. Business combinations which are considered to be 
acquisitions are accounted for under the purchase method. Where necessary, adjustments are made to 
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by 
the group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. 
 

Going concern 
 
The group’s business activities and its current financial position is set out in the strategic report. The 
group has a five-year business plan which shows that it can service its long-term debt facilities while 
continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants. In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the group’s forecasts 
and projections have been subject to robust stress testing and taking into account the predicted financial 
implications of COVID-19, show that the group should be able to operate within the level of its current 
facilities. For this reason, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the group will continue in 
operation for the foreseeable future, being at least twelve months after the date on which the financial 
statements are signed and it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements. 
 

Property, plant and equipment - housing properties 
 

Housing properties are stated at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Cost 
includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings, directly attributable development costs and borrowing 
costs directly attributable to the construction of new housing properties during the development. 
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use 
are complete. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

2. Accounting Policies - continued 
 

Major components of housing properties, which have significantly different patterns of consumption of 
economic benefits, are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their expected useful economic 
lives at the following annual rates: 

 
 Structure    90 years 
 Roofs     70 years 
 Kitchens    10-20 years 
 Bathrooms    15-25 years 
 Windows and doors  30 years 
 Boilers    20 years 
 Lifts    25 years 
 Fire Alarm systems  15 years 

 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 

 
Properties held on long leases are depreciated over their estimated useful economic lives or the lease 
duration if shorter.  

 

Improvements 
 

Where there are improvements to housing properties that are expected to provide incremental future 
benefits, these are capitalised and added to the carrying amount of the property. Any works to housing 
properties which do not replace a component or result in an incremental future benefit are charged as 
expenditure in surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

 

Leaseholders 
 

Where the rights and obligations for improving a housing property reside with the leaseholder or tenant, 
any works to improve such properties incurred by the group are recharged to the leaseholder and 
recognised in surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income along with the corresponding 
income from the leaseholder or tenant. 

 

Impairment of social housing properties 
 
Properties held for their social benefit are not held solely for the cash inflows they generate and are held 
for their service potential. 
 
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether an indicator of impairment exists. If such an 
indicator exists, an impairment assessment is carried out and an estimate of the recoverable amount of 
the asset is made. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an 
impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The 
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Where 
assets are held for their service potential, value in use is determined by the present value of the asset’s 
remaining service potential plus the net amount expected to be received from its disposal. Depreciated 
replacement cost is taken as a suitable measurement model.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

2. Accounting Policies - continued 
 

An impairment loss is reversed if the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply and included 
in surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 

Non-housing property, plant and equipment 
 
Non-housing property, plant and equipment is stated at historic cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on all non-housing property, plant and 
equipment, other than investment properties and freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost 
or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful 
life, as follows: 
 
Furniture, fixtures & fittings  4 years  
Computer equipment  4 years 

 

Leased assets 
 
At inception the group assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The assessment 
considers whether the arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the arrangement. 
 
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. 
Payments under operating leases are charged to surplus or deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

Financial instruments 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 
 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost comprise rent arrears, trade and other receivables and cash 
and cash equivalents. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable 
transaction costs. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.  

 

If there is objective evidence that there is an impairment loss, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced accordingly.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

3. Accounting Policies - continued 
 
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire, or when the 
financial asset and all substantial risks and reward are transferred. 

 

If an arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset is measured at the present value 
of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 
 

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 
 

These financial liabilities include trade and other payables and interest bearing loans and borrowings.  
Non-current debt instruments which meet the necessary conditions in FRS 102, are initially recognised 
at fair value adjusted for any directly attributable transaction cost and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest-related charges recognised as an 
expense in finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Discounting is omitted where the 
effect of discounting is immaterial. 

 
A financial liability is derecognised only when the contractual obligation is extinguished, that is, when the 
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

 

Service charge sinking funds and service costs 
 

Unutilised contributions to service charge sinking funds and over-recovery of service costs which are 
repayable to tenants or leaseholders or are intended to be reflected in reductions to future service charge 
contributions are recognised as a liability in the Statement of Financial Position. The amount included in 
liabilities in respect of service charge sinking funds includes interest credited to the fund. Where there 
has been an under-recovery of leaseholders’ or tenants’ variable service charges and recovery of the 
outstanding balance is virtually certain, the balance is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 
as a trade receivable. Debit and credit balances on individual schemes are not aggregated as there is no 
right of set-off. 

 

Recycling of grants 
 
Where there is a requirement to either repay or recycle a grant received for an asset that has been 
disposed of, a provision is included in the Statement of Financial Position to recognise this obligation as 
a liability. When approval is received from the funding body to use the grant for a specific development, 
the amount previously recognised as a provision for the recycling of the grant is reclassified as a creditor 
in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
For shared ownership staircasing sales, when full staircasing has not taken place, the recycling of the 
grant may be deferred if the net sales proceeds are insufficient to meet the grant obligation relating to 
the disposal and is not recognised as a provision. On subsequent staircasing sales, the requirement to 
recycle the grant becomes an obligation if sufficient sales proceeds are generated to meet the obligation 
and a provision is recognised at this point. 
 
On disposal of an asset for which government grant was received, if there is no obligation to repay the 
grant, any unamortised grant remaining within liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position related to  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

2. Accounting Policies – continued 
 

this asset is derecognised as a liability and recognised as revenue in surplus or deficit in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 
 

Social Housing Grant and other Government grants 
 
Where grants are received from government agencies such as the Homes England, local authorities, 
devolved government agencies, health authorities and the European Commission which meet the 
definition of government grants they are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the 
conditions attached to them will be complied with and that the grant will be received. 
 
Government grants are recognised using the accrual model and are classified either as a grant relating to 
revenue or a grant relating to assets. Grants relating to revenue are recognised in income on a systematic 
basis over the period in which related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate are recognised. 
Where a grant is receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose 
of giving immediate financial support with no future related costs, it is recognised as revenue in the 
period in which it becomes receivable. 
 
Grants relating to assets are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of 
the asset. Grants received for housing properties are recognised in income over the expected useful life 
of the housing property structure. Where a grant is received specifically for components of a housing 
property, the grant is recognised in income over the expected life of the component. 
 
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised as revenue using the performance model. 

 
Turnover 

 
Turnover represents rent and service charges receivable (net of rent and service charge losses from voids) 
and disposal proceeds of current assets such as properties developed for outright sale or shared 
ownership first tranche sales at completion together with revenue grants from local authorities and the 
Homes England and charitable fees and donations.  Service charge income is recognised when 
expenditure is incurred as this is considered to be the point at which the service has been performed and 
the revenue recognition criteria met. 
 

Shared ownership property sales 
 

Shared ownership properties, including those under construction, are split between non-current assets 
and current assets. The split is determined by the percentage of the property to be sold under the first 
tranche disposal which is shown on initial recognition as a current asset, with the remainder classified as 
a non-current asset within property plant and equipment. Where this would result in a surplus on the 
disposal of the current asset that would exceed the anticipated overall surplus, the surplus on disposal 
of the first tranche is limited to the overall surplus by adjusting the costs allocated to current or 
noncurrent assets.  

 

Proceeds from first tranche disposals are accounted for as turnover in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income of the period in which the disposal occurred and the cost of sale is transferred from current assets 
to operating costs.  Proceeds from subsequent tranche sales are treated as disposals of fixed assets. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

2. Accounting Policies – continued 
 

Interest payable 
 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.  
Borrowing costs are calculated using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of a financial instrument and is 
determined on the basis of the carrying amount of the financial liability at initial recognition. Under the 
effective interest method, the amortised cost of a financial liability is the present value of future cash 
payments discounted at the effective interest rate and the interest expense in a period equals the 
carrying amount of the financial liability at the beginning of a period multiplied by the effective interest 
rate for the period 

 

Pensions 
 
The group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme 
which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme 
in the UK. 
 
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force 
on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical 
Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined 
benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. 
 
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it was not possible for the group to obtain 
sufficient information to enable it to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme, therefore the 
company has accounted for the Scheme as a defined contribution scheme. For financial years ending on 
or after 31 March 2019, it is possible to obtain sufficient information to enable the company to account 
for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme. 
 
The group also participates in a defined contribution scheme where the amount charged to surplus or 
deficit in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement 
benefits is the contributions payable in the year.  
 

Holiday pay accrual 
 
A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which has accrued at the 
year end and is carried forward to future periods. 

 

Significant management judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income 
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the  
basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 
2. Accounting Policies – continued 
 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 
 
Significant management judgements 
 
The following are management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the group that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
Impairment of social housing properties 

 
The group have to make an assessment as to whether an indicator of impairment exists. In making the 
judgement, management considered the detailed criteria set out in the SORP.  
 
Capitalisation of property development costs 
 
The group capitalises development expenditure in accordance with the accounting policy on housing 
properties. Judgement is exercised over the likelihood that projects will continue. 

 
Estimation uncertainty 
 
The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year are addressed below.  
 
Provisions 
 
Provision is made to recognise certain liabilities and for rent arrears that are considered uncollectable. 
These provisions require management’s best estimate of the costs that will be incurred based on 
legislative and contractual requirements. In addition, the timing of the cash flows and the discount rates 
used to establish net present value of the obligations require management’s judgement. 
 
Defined benefit pension scheme 
 
The group has obligations to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits and 
the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary 
increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these 
factors in determining the net pension obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect historical 
experience and current trends. 
 
Components of housing properties and useful lives 
 
Major components of housing properties have significantly different patterns of consumption of 
economic benefits and estimates are made to allocate the initial cost of the property to its major 
components and to depreciate each component separately over its useful economic life.  The Group 
considers whether there are any indications that the useful lives require revision at each reporting date 
to ensure that they remain appropriate. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

3. Consolidated turnover, operating costs and operating surplus 

 2021 2020 

  
Turnover 

Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
Surplus 

 
Turnover 

Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
Surplus 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Social housing lettings (note 4) 4,737 4,092 645 4,568 3,788 780 

Other social housing activities       
Supporting people 758 752 6 750 694 56 
Management services 156 155 1 172 171 1 
First tranche shared ownership sales 3 - 3 519 322 197 
Other 364 248 116 301 245 56 
 ______ ______ _______ ______ ______ _______ 
       

 6,018 5,247 771 6,310 5,220 1,090 
 ______ ______ _______ ______ ______ _______ 
Activities other than social housing        
Properties developed for outright sale 874 511 363 475 346 129 
Student letting 217 106 111 213 115 98 
 __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ 

       

 1,091 617 474 688 461 227 
 __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ 
       

 7,109 5,864 1,245 6,998 5,681 1,317 
 __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ 
       

 

3.  Association turnover, operating costs and operating surplus 

 2021 2020 

  
Turnover 

Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
Surplus 

 
Turnover 

Operating 
Costs 

Operating 
Surplus 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Social housing lettings (note 4) 4,737 4,092 645 4,568 3,788 780 

Other social housing activities       
Supporting people 758 752 6 750 694 56 
Management services 156 155 1 172 171 1 
First tranche shared ownership sales 3 - 3 519 322 197 
Other 628 248 380 334 245 89 
 __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ 

       
 6,282 5,247 1,035 6,343 5,220 1,123 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 
4. Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings (Group & Association) 

 

 2021 2020 
  

 
General 

Needs 
Housing 

Supported 
housing & 

housing for 
older 

people 

 
 
 
 

Total 

 
 

General 
Needs 

Housing 

Supported 
housing & 

housing 
for older 

people 

 
 
 
 

Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Income       

Rent receivable net of identifiable 
service charges 

 
2,500 

 
867 

 
3,367 

 
2,427 

 
816 

 
3,243 

Service charges receivable 299 810 1,109 307 758 1,065 
Amortised social housing grant 229 32 261 228 32 260 
 _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ 
       
 3,028 1,709 4,737 2,962 1,586 4,568 
 _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Turnover from social housing 
lettings 

      

Expenditure        
Management 887 679 1,555 919 536 1,455 
Service charge costs 283 511 794 267 484 751 
Routine maintenance 370 166 536 338 151 489 
Planned maintenance 267 63 330 163 67 230 
Major repairs expenditure 107 3 110 53 18 71 
Bad debts 12 33 45 50 42 92 
Property lease charges - 80 80 - 118 118 
Depreciation of housing properties 
and loss on disposal of property 
components 

 
 

504 

 
 

127 

 
 

631 

 
 

457 

 
 

125 

 
 

582 
 _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ 
 
Operating costs  

 
2,430 

 
1,662 

 
4,081 

 
2,247 

 
1,541 

 
3,788 

 _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Operating surplus on social 
housing lettings 

 
598 

 
47 

 
645 

 
715 

 
65 

 
780 

 _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ _____ 
       
Void losses 58 86 144 65 75 140 
 ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ ______ 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
5. Employees 

 Group Association Group Association 
 2021 2021 2020 2020 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Employee costs: 
 

    

Wages and salaries  1,649 1,649 1,478 1,478 
Social security costs 148 148 128 128 
Pension costs 53 53 49 49 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ 
     
 1,850 1,850 1,655 1,655 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 
The average number of employees, including 
part-time employees expressed as full-time 
equivalents: 
 

Number 
         54 

_______ 

Number 
54 

______ 

Number 
        52 

_______ 

Number 
            52  
_______ 

 
 The number of full time equivalents in each salary band: 
 £10,001 - £20,000  9 
 £20,001 - £30,000  33 
 £30,001 - £40,000  3 
 £40,001 - £50,000  4 
 £50,001 - £60,000  2 
 £60,001 +   3 
 

 The basis of calculation of the full-time equivalents was based on a 37.5 hr week. 
 

Social housing pension scheme 
 
The company participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme 
which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme 
in the UK. 
 
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force 
on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical 
Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined 
benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. 
 
The last completed triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at 30 
September 2017. This valuation revealed a deficit of £1,522m. A Recovery Plan has been put in place with 
the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September 2026. 
 
The scheme is classified as a ‘last-man standing arrangement’. Therefore the company is potentially liable 
for other participating employers’ obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the 
scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme. Participating employers are legally required to 
meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 

5. Employees – continued 

Social housing pension scheme – continued 
 
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it was not possible for the company to obtain 
sufficient information to enable it to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme, therefore the 
company has accounted for the Scheme as a defined contribution scheme. 
 
For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it is possible to obtain sufficient information to 
enable the company to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme. 
 
For accounting purposes, a valuation of the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 
September 2018. The liability figures from this valuation were rolled forward for accounting year-ends 
from 31 March 2019 to 29 February 2020 inclusive. 
 
Similarly, actuarial valuations of the scheme were carried out as at 30 September 2019 to inform the 
liabilities for accounting year ends from 31 March 2020 to 28 February 2021 inclusive, and as at 30 
September 2020 to inform the liabilities for accounting year ends from 31 March 2021 to 28 February 
2022 inclusive. 
 
The liabilities are compared, at the relevant accounting date, with the company’s fair share of the 
Scheme’s total assets to calculate the company’s net deficit or surplus. 

 

Fair value of plan assets, present value of defined benefit obligation, and defined benefit asset 
(liability)  

 31 March 2021 
(£000s) 

31 March 2020 
(£000s) 

Fair value of plan assets 2,874 3,312 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,528 3,669 

Surplus (deficit) in plan (654) (357) 

Unrecognised surplus - - 

Defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised (654) (357) 

Deferred tax - - 

Net defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised - - 
                               

 

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation 

 31 March 2021 
(£000s) 

Defined benefit obligation at start of period 3,669 
Current service cost - 
Expenses 5 
Interest expense 76 
Contributions by plan participants - 
Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience 60 
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions 12 
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions 667 
Benefits paid and expenses (961) 
Liabilities acquired in a business combination - 
Liabilities extinguished on settlements - 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 
5. Employees – continued 

 
Social housing pension scheme - continued 

 
Losses (gains) on curtailments - 
Losses (gains) due to benefit changes - 
Exchange rate changes - 

Defined benefit obligation at end of period 3,528 

 

 
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets 

 31 March 2021 
(£000s) 

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 3,312 
Interest income 69 
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income – gain 
(loss) 

 
346 

Contributions by the employer 108 
Contributions by plan participants - 
Benefits paid and expenses (961) 
Assets acquired in a business combination - 
Assets distributed on settlements - 
Exchange rate changes - 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 2,874 
 _______ 

Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SOCI) 

 Period from 
31 March 2020 to  

31 March 2021 
(£000s) 

Current service cost - 
Expenses 5 
Net interest expense 7 
Losses (gains) on business combinations - 
Losses (gains) on settlements - 
Losses (gains) on curtailments - 
Losses (gains) due to benefit changes - 

Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SOCI) 12 
 _______ 

Defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 

 Period from 31 
March 2020 to 
31 March 2021 

(£000s) 

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) – gain 
(loss) 

 
346 

Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities – gain (loss) (60) 
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation – gain (loss) 

 
(12) 

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation – gain (loss) 

 
(667) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
5. Employees – continued 

 
Social housing pension scheme - continued 

 
Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus not 
being recognisable) – gain (loss) 

 
(393) 

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable (excluding 
amounts included in net interest cost) – gain (loss) 

 
- 

  

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income – gain (loss) (393) 

 
Assets 

 31 March 2021 
(£000s) 

31 March 2020 
(£000s) 

Global equity 458 484 

Absolute return 159 173 

Distressed opportunities 83 64 

Credit relative value 90 91 

Alternative risk premia 108 232 

Fund of hedge funds - 2 

Emerging market debts 116 100 

Risk sharing 105 112 

Insurance-linked securities 69 102 

Property 60 73 

Infrastructure 192 246 

Private debt 69 67 

Opportunistic illiquid credit 73 80 

High Yield 86 - 

Opportunistic Credit 79 - 

Corporate bond fund 170 189 

Liquid credit 34 1 

Long lease property 56 57 

Secured income 120 126 

Over 15-year gilts - - 

Index linked all stock gilts - - 

Liability driven investment 730 1,099 

Net current assets 17 14 

Total assets 2,874 3,312 
                               

 
None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer’s own 
financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer. 

 
 
 

 



ELIM HOUSING ASSOCIATION GROUP 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  43 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

 
5. Employees – continued 

 
 Social housing pension scheme - continued 

Key assumptions 

 31 March 2021 
% per annum 

31 March 2020 
% per annum 

Discount rate 2.17 2.38 

Inflation (RPI) 3.28 2.62 

Inflation (CPI) 2.86 1.62 

Salary growth 3.86 2.62 

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at 
retirement 

75% of maximum 
allowance 

75% of maximum 
allowance 

 
The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2021 imply the following life expectancies: 

 Life expectancy at 
age 65 (years) 

Male retiring in 2021 21.6 
Female retiring in 2021 23.5 
Male retiring in 2041 22.9 
Female retiring in 2041 25.1 

 

6. Board members and executive directors 
 

  2021 2020 
   
Average weekly number of executive directors (full time equivalents): 3 3 
   
 £’000 £’000 
Emoluments of the above executive directors including the chief 
executive but excluding pension contributions 
 
Pension contributions on behalf of the above executive directors 

 
249 

 
20 

 
226 

 
16 

                                     

 
The emoluments of the highest paid director, the Chief Executive, excluding pension contributions, were 
£100,593 (2020: £95,000).  
 
The Chief Executive is a member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme. He is an ordinary member of the 
pension scheme and no enhanced or special terms apply. The group does not make any further contribution 
to an individual pension arrangement for the Chief Executive. 
 
No emoluments were paid to members of the Board during the year. 
 
Re-imbursement of expenses during the year to members of the Board amounted to £245 (2020: £1,514). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

7. Operating surplus 
 

 Group Association Group Association 
 2021 2021 2020 2020 
This is stated after charging/(crediting): 
 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

External auditors’ remuneration     
- for the audit of the accounts 23 18 23 18 

Depreciation of housing properties 659 638 613 592 
Depreciation of other property, plant and 
equipment 

68 68 77 77 

Amortisation of social housing grant (262) (262) (260) (260) 
Operating lease rentals     
- land and buildings 138 138 138 138 
- office and other equipment  18 18 18 18 

 

8. Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 

 Group Association Group Association 

 2021 2021 2020 2020 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 
equipment 

283 283 771 771 

Carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment 

(225) (225) (496) (496) 
 

 ________ ________ ________ ________ 
     
 58 58 275 275 
                                                                 

 

9. Interest receivable 
 

  Group Association Group Association 
  2021 2021 2020 2020 
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bank interest receivable  1 13 2 12 
                                          
 

10. Interest and financing costs 
 

 Group Association Group Association 
 2021 2021 2020 2020 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bank loan, interest and finance costs 694 663 702 665 
                                          
 
Interest costs of £nil have been capitalised during the year using an average rate of 3% (2020: £6,128). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

11. Taxation 
 

 Group Association Group Association 
 2021 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
2020 

£’000 
2020 

£’000 
United Kingdom corporation tax at 19% 34 - 30 - 
                                                             
     
Factors affecting tax charge for the year     
     
The current tax charge for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (19%). 
The differences are explained below: 

 
 Group Association Group Association 
 2021 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
2020 

£’000 
2020 

£’000 
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 610 443 892 614 
                                                             
     
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 
multiplied by standard rate of 

    

Corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 
19%) 

116 84 169 117 

     
Effects of:     
     
Income not taxable in determining taxable 
surplus 

(86) (84) (139) (117) 

 
Fixed asset differences 
 

4 - - - 

Short term timing differences - - (3) - 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ 
     
Current tax charge for the year 34 - 27 - 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

12. Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (Group) 

 Social housing 
properties 

held for 
letting 

Social housing 
properties under 

construction 

 
 

Low cost home 
ownership 

Shared Ownership 
housing under 

construction 

 
 

Developed for sale 

 
 

Student housing 

 
 

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cost        
At 1 April 2020 48,788 - 2,585 526 - 1,019 52,917 
Purchases 25 44 1 292 - - 362 
Works to existing properties 95 - - - - - 95 
Disposals (80) - (65) - - - (145) 
Transfer to work in progress - - - (114) - - (114) 
Schemes completed - - - - - - - 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
        
At 31 March 2021 48,828 44 2,521 704 - 1,019 53,116 
           _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
        
Depreciation and impairment        
At 1 April 2020 6,855 - - - - 254 7,109 
Depreciation charged in year 638 - - - - 20 658 
Released on disposal (50) - - - - - (50) 
 _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
At 31 March 2021 6,443 - - - - 274 7,717 
                                                                                        

Net book value        
At 31 March 2021 41,385 44 2,521 704 - 745 45,399 
                                                                                                                     
        

At 31 March 2020 41,933 - 2,585 526 - 765 45,809 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

12. Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (Group) - continued 
 

There were £42,327 of direct development labour costs capitalised in this year (2020: £62,789). 
 

 
 
Expenditure on works to existing properties 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

   
Improvement works and components capitalised 95 508 
Amounts charged to the statement of comprehensive income 104 48 
                                 
   
 199 556 
                                 

 
       Housing properties book value, net of depreciation comprises: 
 

 
 
 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Freehold land and buildings 37,448 37,879 
Long leasehold land and buildings 7,789 7,789 
Short leasehold land and buildings 162 145 
                                 
   
 45,399 45,813 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
12. Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (Association) 

 Social housing 
properties 
held for 

letting 

Social housing 
properties 

under 
construction 

Low cost home 
ownership 

Shared 
Ownership 

housing under 
construction 

Developed 
for sale 

Total 
 
 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cost       
At 1 April 2020 48,788 - 2,585 526 - 51,899 
Purchases 25 44 1 292 - 362 
Works to existing 
properties 

95 - - - - 95 

Disposals (80) - (65) - - (145) 
Transfer to work in 
progress 

- - - (114) - (114) 

Schemes completed - - - - - - 
                                                                                                       
       
At 31 March 2021 48,828 44 2,521 704 - 52,097 
                                                                                                       
       
Depreciation and 
impairment 

      

At 1 April 2020 6,855 - - - - 6,855 
Depreciation charged 
in year 

638 - - - - 638 

Released on disposal (50) - - - - (50) 
                                                                                                       
       
At 31 March 2021 7,443 - - - - 7,443 
                                                                                                       
Net book value       
At 31 March 2021 41,385 44 2,521 704 - 44,654 
                                                                                                       
       
At 31 March 2020 41,933 - 2,585 526 - 45,044 
                                                                                                       
       

 
There were £42,327 of direct development labour costs capitalised in this year (2020: £62,789). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ELIM HOUSING ASSOCIATION GROUP 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  49 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

12. Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (Association) - continued 
 

 
Expenditure on works to existing properties 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

   
Improvement works and components capitalised 95 503 
Amounts charged to the statement of comprehensive income 104 48 
                                   
   
 199 551 
                                   

 

 Housing properties book value, net of depreciation comprises: 
 

 
 

2021 
£’000 

2020 
£’000 

Freehold land and buildings 36,703 37,130 
Long leasehold land and buildings 7,789 7,789 
Short leasehold land and buildings 162 145 
                                  
   
 44,654 45,064 
                                  

  

13. Property, plant and equipment – Other 
 

Office equipment, furniture and fittings   
  Group  Association 
  £’000  £’000 
Cost   
At 1 April 2020 606 606 
Additions 45 45 
                                 
   
At 31 March 2021 651 651 
                                 
   
Depreciation   
At 1 April 2020 541 541 
Charged in the year 69 69 
                                 
   
At 31 March 2021 610 610 
                                 
Net book value   
At 31 March 2021 41 41 
                                 
   
At 31 March 2020 65 65 
                                 

 



ELIM HOUSING ASSOCIATION GROUP 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  50 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

14. Investment in subsidiaries 
 

As required by statute, the financial statements consolidate the results of Lime Property Ventures 
Limited which was a subsidiary of the association throughout the year.  

 
Elim Housing Association Limited is the ultimate parent undertaking. 
  

15. Inventories 
 

  Group  
2021 

Association 
2021 

 

Group & 
Association 

2020 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Completed properties for sale 1,113 613 1,174 
 _______ _______ _______ 

 
16. Debtors 

 
 Group Association Group Association 
 2021 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
2020 

£’000 
2020 

£’000 
Rent and service charges receivable 696 689 780 778 
Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (369) (369) (469) (469) 
 ________ ________ ________ ________ 
     
 327 320 311 309 
Trade debtors 317 317 304 304 
Other debtors 39 22 59 42 
Prepayments and accrued income 353 340 365 349 
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking - 861 - 416 
 ________ ________ ________ ________ 
     
 1,036 1,860 1,039 1,420 
 ________ ________ ________ ________ 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

17.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
 

 Group Association Group Association 

 2021 2021 2020 2020 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Loans (note 22) 19 6 19 6 
Trade creditors 232 226 421 417 
Other taxation and social security 46 42 46 42 
Corporation tax 34 - 30 - 
Other creditors  259 242 260 244 
Accruals and deferred income 579 552 425 379 
Support services grant received in advance - - - - 
Social housing grants (note 20) 261 261 260 260 
SHPS pension agreement plan (note 5) - - - - 
Sinking funds 76 76 76 76 
Rent received in advance 284 246 272 

 
232 

 
 ________ ________ ________ _______ 
     
 1,790 1,651 1,809 1,656 
 ________ ________ ________ ________ 

 

18. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 
 

 Group Association Group     Association ss 
           2021           2021 2020           2020  
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  
Social housing grants (note 20) 19,475 19,475 19,737 19,737  
Recycled capital grant fund (note 21) 284 284 284 284  
Loans (note 22) 19,485 18,535 19,495 18,531  
SHPS defined benefit liability (note 5) 653 542 356 356  
 _______ _______ _______ _______  
      
 39,897 38,947 39,872 38,908  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

19. Provision for liabilities and charges 
 

Deferred tax – Fixed asset timing differences 
 
  Group Association Group Association 

  2021 2021 2020 2020 
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
At the start of the year  1 - 4 - 
      
Charge for the year  (1) - (3) - 
  ________ ________ ________ ________ 
      
  - - 1 - 
  ________ ________ ________ ________ 

 

20. Social housing grants 
 

     Group &       
Association 

    Group &       
Association 

           2021           2020 
 £’000 £’000 

At beginning of year 19,997 19,629 
Grant receivable - 628 
Released to income in the year (261) (260) 
Relating to disposals - - 
 _______ _______ 
   
At end of year 19,736 19,997 
                               

Due to be released in less than one year 261 260 
                               

Due to be released after more than one year 19,475 19,737 
                               

 
 Total accumulated amount of social housing grant received or receivable at the year-end 

is £23,390,117 (2020- £23,390,117). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

21. Recycled capital grant fund 
 

     Group &       
Association 

 

    Group &       
Association 

 
           2021           2020 
         £’000         £’000 
   
At beginning of year 284 284 
Inputs – Grants recycled - - 
Recycling – New build - - 
 _______ _______ 
   
At end of year  284 284 
                               
 

22. Loan analysis 
 

      
Group  

 

          
Association 

 

 
Group 

          
Association 

 

 

           2021           2021 2020           2020  
Due within one year £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  
Orchardbrook Limited 6 6 6 6  
Lloyds Banking Group 13 - 13 -  
                                                             
      
Due after more than one year                                 
Orchardbrook Limited 538 538 538 538  
Lloyds Banking Group 11,906 10,956 11,891 10,927  
Triodos 7,041 7,041 7,066 7,066  
 _______ _______ _______ _______  
      
 19,485 18,535 19,495 18,531  
                                                              
Loans are repayable as follows:      
      
Due within one year 19 6 19 5  
Between one and two years 12,016 11,066 26 6  
Between two and five years 1,353 1,353 11,971 11,028  
After five years 6,312 6,312 7,705 7,705  
Less: loan issue costs (196) (196) (207) (207)  
 _______ _______ _______ _______  
      
 19,504 18,541 19,514 18,537  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

22. Loan analysis - continued 
 
 The loans are secured by fixed charges on individual properties. 
 
 The loan from Orchardbrook Limited is repayable in six monthly instalments until the loan matures in 

2043. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 10.9%.  
 
 The Lloyds Banking Group loans are used to finance the development of housing properties. The current 

facilities total £11,000,000 and are provided on an interest only basis until September 2022 when they 
are repayable in full. Borrowings from the Lloyds Banking Group are on fixed or variable arrangements 
with interest rates ranging from 1.7% to 5.6% 

 
 The Triodos loan of £7.15 million is repayable in monthly instalments until the loan matures in 2042. 

Interest is charged at a fixed rate on £5.4m of 2.99% until 5/10/2026 and the remainder is at a variable 
rate based on the bank base rate. The loan is an interest only loan until June 2022. 

 
 At 31 March 2021 the group had undrawn loan facilities of £6,850,000 (2020: £4,850,000). 
 

23. Capital and other financial commitments 
 

The group and association had the following capital expenditure commitments. 
 
 Group &       

Association 
Group &       

Association 
   
 2021 2020 
 £’000 £’000 
Capital expenditure   
 Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts - 695 
Expenditure authorised but not contracted for 2,636 - 
                                   

 
The above commitments will be financed through the use of own funds held and our loan facilities. 
 
As at 31 March 2021, the group and association had future minimum lease payments under non–
cancellable operating leases as follows: 
 
 Group &       

Association 
Group &       

Association 
 2021 2020 
 £’000 £’000 
Payments due:-   
Less than one year 156 156 
Two to five years 386 459 
After five years 83 166 
 _______ _______ 
   
 625 781 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

24. Share capital 
 

The issued share capital entitles the holder to voting rights at the Annual General Meeting. It does not 
convey any rights to a dividend, any provision for redemption or for a distribution upon winding up. 
 
 2021 2020 
 £ £ 
Allotted, called up and fully paid   
At beginning of year 28 28 
Issued during the year - - 
Cancelled during the year - - 
 _______ _______ 
   
At end of year 28 28 
                                 

 

25. Housing stock 
 

 2021 2020 
 Number Number 
General needs 421 423 
Gypsy & Traveller 88 88 
Shared ownership 38 39 
Supported housing 240 235 
Student lets 22 22 
Managed properties 88 88 
 _______ _______ 
   
Number of units in management 897 895 
                               
Number of units in development at 31 March 2021: 6 (2020: 6) 

 

26. Related parties 
 

Elim received management fees of £14,202 and received interest of £12,491 from Lime Property 
Ventures Limited. 
 
At 31 March 2021 the company was owed £861,303 by Lime Property Ventures Limited. 

 

27. Post balance sheet event 
 

Lime Property Ventures are due to complete the sale of two properties at the Coulstreng development 
in May 2021 at a value of £675,000. 
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